
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, June 3rd, 2014.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 



Steven Kessler, Board Member 



Robert Foley, Board Member 
Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member 
Peter Daly, Board Member
Jim Creighton, Board Member

ALSO PRESENT:




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney

 



Ed Vergano, Town Engineer



Chris Kehoe, Deputy Director for Planning


*



*



*
CHANGES TO AGENDA 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we do have just a couple of changes to our agenda this evening.  We will be moving PB 13-05 down to ‘old business’ and we will be removing PB 01-14 per the applicant’s request.  


*



*



*
ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF APRIL 1 AND MAY 6, 2014:
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated may I have a motion to adopt the minutes of April 1st and May 6th.

So moved, seconded. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question I have a few.  I’ll give to Chris for both May 6th and April 1st.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
CORRESPONDENCE:
PB 23-08    a.
Letter dated May 12, 2014 from John Alfonzetti, P.E. requesting the 4th 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Mountain View Estates Subdivision located at the end of Joseph Wallace Drive.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 16-14 in favor of giving this approval.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 5-08      b.
Letter dated May 14, 2014 from Barbara Montes requesting the 8th 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Radio Estates Subdivision located at the end of Radio Terrace.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I make a motion that we approve Resolution #17-14.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

*



*



*
RESOLUTION:
PB 15-13    a.
Application of Danny Porco/NY Fuel Distributors, for the property of NY Dealer Stations, for Site Development Plan Approval and a Special Permit for a new canopy for the existing Shell Service Station located at the northwest corner of the intersection of Oregon Road and Old Oregon Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Canopy Plan” prepared by John V. Catapano, P.E. latest revision dated March 14, 2014. (see prior PB 31-93)

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairwoman I move to adopt Resolution #18-14 granting the approval and note that there’s an additional conditions 8 and 9 regarding catalog cuts of the canopy lights which are LED-type lights I understand now, to be submitted to the Director of Technical Services for compliance.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the applicant is aware of these changes.  

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
OLD BUSINESS: 

PB 13-05    a.
Letter dated May 22, 2014 from David Steinmetz, Esq. regarding the separate filing of the final plot into two (2) portions in order to facilitate the sale of at least two (2) of the lots along Lexington Avenue, along with the (off site) Cortway Apartments for the Mill Court Crossing Subdivision on Lexington Avenue and Mill Court.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated good evening Madame Chair, members of the board, David Steinmetz from the law firm of Zarin and Steinmetz.  I’m returning this evening representing Kirquel Development and the Chair read our letter.  I’ve not been involved in this project in a number of years.  Some of you may recall we had been involved at the inception of this project.  We were not involved in the later years.  We were not involved in your board’s ultimate resolution of preliminary Plat Approval nor were we involved in the litigation that ensued from there.  However, we have been asked to get involved, as I indicated in my cover letter essentially to implement final approval.  Let’s take a quick step back.  I know my partner Brad Schwartz brought the board through this in the work session and I’ll just cover the same ground briefly.  Procedurally, your board granted Preliminary Plat Approval with a number of conditions and you’ll recall your board struck a number of the lots that had been requested by the applicant at that time.  Your board granted preliminary approval, I think – I don’t have the exact date in front of me at my hand, I think it’s November of 2010 and litigation ensued.  The court agreed with a lot of what your board.  The court disagreed with a few conditions.  So, what we’ve done, what we’ve been asked to do is to come back before the Planning Board to get Kirquel through Final Plat Approval of the 16 lots that your board approved.  Your board approved 3 lots on Lexington and 13 lots on an extension off of Mill Court.  You struck a number of other lots off of Mill Court.  We were asked specifically to try to facilitate, and Chris if you could give me if you would the phase I plat showing the Lexington.  Can you back out of that a little?  What we’ve been asked to do was to help facilitate the prompt filing of the 3 lots along Lexington to facilitate the sale of Cortway Apartments and at least 2 of those 3 lots: lots on this map I guess they’re called – well 2 and 3 are the two lots that I’m referring to now, to facilitate the sale of lots 2 and 3 which, just so that you can all see what Chris is showing, you’ve got lots 2 and 3 there and then Cortway Apartments is both to the north as well as to the south.  There is a contract currently.  There’s a contract vendee who’s desire is to purchase Cortway Apartments and those two lots that are kind of sandwiched in the middle.  As a result of that, what we’ve proposed and we’ve met with staff and we’ve met with council to discuss how best to do this.  Those three lots on Lexington are fairly straightforward.  There’s minimal infrastructure associated with those lots, there’s not a lot of the issues that might come from the lots off of Mill Court.  We’ve suggested breaking the filing of the plat into kind of two portions: the first portion being what we’re looking at here.  In connection with this, I have been authorized by Kirquel, and this is not set forth in my cover letter though Mr. Schwartz explained this in the work session, we have been authorized to, by our client, to put back on the table one of the things that your board asked for conditioned and the courts struck and that was some of the improvements, the sight distance improvements associated with the intersection of Red Mill Road and Mill Court.  Our client has authorized us to offer to the town, to your board in connection with the project, $35,000 worth of engineering and associated improvements at that intersection which I don’t have a definitive proposal of exactly what you can or should do because in essence, because the court struck it, my client is under an obligation to provide those improvements but is willing, in the spirit of good faith, trying to facilitate what we’re asking for and because we do know that that was an important condition to the board at the time the Resolution was granted.  We are offering to have those mitigation measures and improvements put back on the table.  I’m here tonight, in essence, asking for the following: number one, I’d like to try to see if we can bifurcate or separate the filing of the plat into two portions, it’s permissible under state law and we’ve discussed this with staff, that would in essence avoid having to deal with some of the issues of infrastructure bonding, etc which is more complicated with the Mill Court lots than it is with the Lexington lots.  You would still get the improvements that you requested on the Lexington lots, namely the sidewalks, that was upheld by the court, you would collect your recreation fee with those three lots and we would file that first phase of the plat most likely before we would get to the second phase of the plat.  Why do I say most likely?  It’s our opinion that it may take a little bit longer for your board to go through final approval on the Mill Court lots in particular because that will require, Ed and Chris can speak to that, that will require that we go to the county and address a number of issues in terms of satisfying conditions with the County Health Department, the implementation of the sewer improvements on Mill Court.  The sewer laterals on Mill Court were upheld by the court.  That was a lawful exercise of your board’s authority and imposing that as a condition.  What I would like to try to do, I’d like to come back for a public hearing in July on the phase I of the plat.  We don’t think that there was any significant concerns as to that in terms of neighbors, etc.  We’d like to move forward with that and we can certainly move forward with the balance of the project more or less consecutively but by breaking it off what we’re trying to do is facilitate the transaction on Cortway Apartments and in connection with that, I know these questions came up at your work session: number one, the perspective purchaser of Cortway is intending to do, in essence, a facelift of those buildings so my understanding is there will be some improvements associated with that, some landscaping and facelift.  In terms of the lot #1 I know there were some questions raised about lot #1.  It remains, just so that all the board members are clear, Chris again that’s lot #1, the northerly most lot.
Mr. Robert Foley stated it would be lot 14…

Mr. David Steinmetz responded correct, also known as lot 14, thank you Mr. Foley.  That lot, it’s currently not the subject of a contract of sale to the individual or entity buying Cortway Apartments, it may yet be included, if not it would be intended to be sold as a single-family residence in accordance with your resolution or preliminary plat approval.  I think your questions were: what’s happening to Cortway Apartments?  What’s happening to lot 14, known as lot 1 on this plat?  What are we proposing relative to the sight distance?  The sight distance again would be a contribution and I guess could be allocated by staff as to how that money ultimately would be spent for either sight distance improvements or traffic calming or whatever your board chose to do with those funds. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated excuse me one second.  People in the rear, please could you take the discussion outside.  It’s really disturbing.  I’m sorry.  Just to be clear on what you just said I wasn’t aware of, 15 it’s 16 on mine, it’s 3 and 4 or 2 and 3…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated 2 and 3 are now 15 and 16.  I know which lots you’re referring to.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated it’s separated out but you’re saying now that 14 or your 1 is not – you’re not sure what’s going to happen to that.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated what I can say is it’s not currently, Mr. Bianchi, subject to the contract of sale for Cortway Apartments.  Right now, the entity that’s buying Cortway wants to buy Cortway and doesn’t want the cream in the middle of the Oreo to be omitted.  They’re basically buying the entire cookie.  They’re buying the Cortway and that which is sandwiched in the middle.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked is the expectation then that they’re going to come back for a revised application for those two lots to build something else?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded no.  As of now, they’re single-family lots and they would most likely be used as single-family lots but the owner – or they wouldn’t be developed at all potentially.  At the moment, the individual wants to buy Cortway, once they fix up Cortway and does not want out parcels in the middle of their ownership. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is it possible that this person would then develop some additional apartments on that property…

Mr. David Steinmetz responded at the moment that would require a return to the Planning Board and a full application an there is no – I am unaware of that being anybody’s intention.  That’s not subject to the contract and I have not been told that.  Again, staff has met with my client and with me.  That has not been something that has been presented.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I guess my issue David here is that if we were to pursue this I don’t see how we could pursue this without what we approved as open space being part of this and not tie it back to the other part of the property.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated let me speak to that because maybe – I don’t know if it’s clear on what you’re looking at, it should be.  Mr. Kessler, we’re not omitting any of the open space.  You would still get the entire open space…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I understand that but I would like the open space that at least abuts what you’re trying to separate as part of this approval and we’ll deal with the other open space as part of the rest of the Mill Court development.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it absolutely would be because what we – assuming we file the plat in two portions – can you put up Chris if you would the – not that one I think there should be another one.  This is it, Steve give me a moment if you would.  What we’re proposing here is three residential lots and the entirety of the balance of the property would remain, at that moment in time, un-subdivided although it is subject to your resolution of preliminary approval.  We could put a legend on the map that said “that’s proposed to be open space.”  We’re not trying to subdivide.  We can’t subdivide the proposed open space.  We have preliminary plat approval for 16 lots and remember your board never saw those lots on a plat because you struck lots that the applicant had presented to you.  So, what I’ve tried to do is I tried to have the applicant show you, in essence, that which you approved not what he proposed because you struck what he proposed so what you’ve got before you is the 16 lots this board granted approval for broken into two filings.  The purpose of the two filings is so that we can facilitate the transfer of three residential lots and nobody’s touching the open space and your resolution of final plat approval could indicate that and our plat could certainly indicate that.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated go back to the map please Chris.  You see where – run a line down the corner, no, no, to your left, right there.  why can’t the subdivision be that whole section with that open space as part of it and then everything else and the subdivision to the left will be part of the other one.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated no problem.  If that’s where you want to draw the line, we can certainly…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated because I don’t know what’s going to happen with Mill Court and when it’s going to happen but at least that open space would be part of an approval of something.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated no objection at all.  Just so that we’re all clear, so that I’m not missing what you’re saying, everything we’re looking at on this plat that’s in the darker grey – Chris just run the perimeter so we’re all together on it, everything on that is proposed to be open space.  You all granted preliminary approval for that to be open space.  I’m not here on behalf of my client trying to change that in any way so whatever makes you comfortable in accomplishing that, we’re happy to facilitate that, that’s open space.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so, what I’m talking about is if you draw the line down right there, going vertical, the other corner, so that whole section becomes part of the new application or at least the subdivision change…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I’m still confused about the first lot.  I’m not confused but I’m not certain what the advantage is in putting that in that grouping.  I know you said it about infrastructure is a little bit different, I understand that…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s the main reason.  It’s on Lexington.  There’s no new sewer that’s associated with it, it’s just a lateral connection.  There’s no new water line associated with it.  It’s a lateral connection.  It’s on Lexington.  It makes sense to segregate it separately because it was not one of the, at least again, you all lived several years of the process after I was no longer involved.  It was not part of the essential controversy which were the 13 lots that you all pared it down to.  To the extent they were breaking it off from a planning perspective, and I’d let the professionals comment on it, it makes sense to put that with the other. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated but you’re not sure if he’s going to sell that. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated current expectation is it’s to be sold.  Obviously, facilitating the sale of both Cortway and that potential lot, realize, the reality is that’s helping me present to you an offer to give you the sight distance improvements that the courts said you could not get.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked so he is actively pursuing selling that property?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded correct.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and any change to Cortway Apartments – Mr. Steinmetz mentioned façade improvements, landscaping, any additional units hasn’t been any discussion about that.  It’s zoned single-family residential .  This is some sort of pre-existing development so there’d be a lot of discussion and it would definitely come back to this board but I’m not even sure how permitted it would be to extend that into that upper lot.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated again, off-the-cuff reaction, I think it would require a re-zoning.  Nobody’s trying to turn lots 15 and 16 into multi-family housing.  It’s unlikely and it’s probably not the highest and best use of the property either.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and the $35,000, what is that buy us?  I know it’s for us to use as we want but I mean is that a lot of money, a little money?

Mr. Robert Foley asked is the $35,000 just the sidewalks on Lexington?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded no, it has nothing to do with that.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that’s the sight distance improvements.  They’re referring to the sight distance improvements on Mill Court and Red Mill Road.  The question is what does it buy us, I’m not sure. 
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think this is the first time you’ve heard that number right?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that’s right.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated could you give us some guidance on that?
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it doesn’t appear to be a lot of money and there might be a lot of money needed to do some of those.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated it may be a $70,000 project.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but right now you have zero.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I understand.  Could you get back to us with some kind of…

Mr. Ed Vergano responded sure. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated also specific as what the mitigation would be there, and I asked at the work session, is it just cutting back for sight line or would it include that one curb cut, you know where the buses pull in and then go up Mill Court from Red Mill and not stop and block traffic…

Mr. Ed Vergano responded we’ll look at both scenarios.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated so David, one of the concerns that we have is obviously the Mill Court when that comes before us for more detail and we get to that stage, there are a lot of questions we’re going to have about the school buses and other things.  The $35,000 that your client is offering in connection with the Lexington lots and improvements down Red Mill for that, that no way takes anything off the table as to what your client may or should be doing to help the Mill lots to get themselves into a place where they can be developed.  The fact that we would be doing a public hearing on phase I doesn’t remove our ability to talk about what specifically needs to happen for phase II.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded correct.  

Mr. Jim Creighton stated so the $35,000 isn’t everything, it’s just for now that gets us for those three or four lots. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked well let’s be clear.  You want a number in the resolution if we were to approve phase I?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded do I want a number?  You’re going to write your own resolution.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked is your expectation, by bringing this up, that part of the approval process will be anteing up some amount of money for engineering work to take place at Red Mill Road?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded correct, the best way to answer that is, I want to go back.  My understanding, and I believe Mr. Klarl agrees because we both looked at the court decisions together, the conditions that your board imposed for sight distance and for traffic calming were stricken as improper.  My client has specifically authorized that we reintroduce what he believes is appropriate number for sight distance because he wants to help facilitate the process here.  So, answering Mr. Creighton’s question, I know we’ve got to come back and go through final subdivision plat approval on the Mill Court lots.  Whatever that entails we’re going to all have to deal with I think the three lots on Lexington with your open space parcel are a lot easier and we can make that happen.  We can facilitate the transaction and we’ve been open about it.  Nobody’s trying to hide the fact.  He’s asking “hey, help me get those broken off as legal lots so I can sell them.”  We think selling them is a good thing A) because it should lead to some improvements at Cortway, B) it provides the opportunity to expedite funding to provide the sight distance.  You guys wanted sight distance, we’ve given you a way now to get it that the courts said you couldn’t get.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but let’s be clear here.  You have final plat approval for everything. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated preliminary.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m sorry preliminary plat approval as part of segregating the two parcels you want to lock in an amount of money to be determined as part of the approval of phase I. 

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I’m offering – we’re not trying to lock in an amount to be determined.  We’re offering something in connection with it. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that could be discussed in phase II also.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that money actually is more for improvements associated with phase II.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded that’s right. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated the resolution will say $35,000.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I’ve been involved, as you all know, in enough resolutions in over 20 some odd years with this board, you normally write the numbers in your resolution.  We’re offering the number and my suspicion is that Chris and Ed would put it in your draft resolution and it would say “whereas the applicant has voluntarily offered $35,000 to be utilized by the town in connection with the implementation of sight distance improvements at the intersection…”
Mr. Steven Kessler stated in the resolution for phase I.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded correct.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what’s the need to put it in a resolution for phase I?

Mr. Robert Foley stated that’s what I thought.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I don’t care where you put it.  I don’t care which resolution it’s in, the issue is we want it to be clear that it’s being offered. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked can we focus back to phase I then?  The $35,000 you’re talking about has nothing to do with mitigation on phase I correct?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded the only mitigation that the court said was appropriate on phase I is the sidewalk which we have to install the sidewalk on those three lots, that 

Mr. Robert Foley asked and then also on phase I the lot 14 or 1 on the plan, because it has been preliminary approved as part of the whole thing, we talked about open space as Steve addressed but the conservation easements, as prescribed on here, remain exactly the same on lot 14 or lot 1…

Mr. David Steinmetz responded correct, yes I think it’s depicted right there Mr. Foley.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated that’s untouched.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded yes, nobody’s touching the conservation easement there or the conservation easement on 15 and 16.

Mr. Robert Foley stated because that lot 14 always was problematic with me…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated had some sensitive areas, understood.  Again, at least my understanding is, gentlemen correct me if I’m wrong, we haven’t changed anything that you’ve approved.  We’re giving you what you approved as upheld by the court.  We’re just trying to file it in a slightly expedited fashion.  We’re offering back something that was taken away from you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m looking at that $35,000, if in fact it is to be used primarily for phase II, why is there a need to lock it in at phase I?  It doesn’t have to be because I’m wondering if we choose to ask for more than $35,000 and we’ve already approved a document or a filing that says ‘oh we agreed to the 35,000’ then we’re going to have to fight with the applicant about that $35,000 number.  It may be that we would want $50,000.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I think if we don’t do it we could lose it.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated exactly.  I really appreciate the question because I want to try to flush this out.  I kind of did this preliminarily, maybe the number wasn’t flushed out in the staff-level meeting.  I don’t think you can get additional monies because we theoretically, the applicant could theoretically just process the balance of the 16 lots, go through the process however the process unfolds and you, as a matter of law, the court has already ruled, John gave me the decisions, courts said you could not exact or extract anything associated with Red Mill and Mill Court for sight distance or traffic calming.  You tried to, you imposed that condition, you were successful on a lot of stuff, you lost that…

Mr. John Klarl stated for those keeping score at home, there were 7 conditions that were litigated; 5 were favorably for the town.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it was a 5 to 2 according to John’s scorecard.  There was no Mariano did not step in on that one John.  In any event, what I was tasked with doing when I was brought in was try to reinstate that, in the spirit of trying to cooperate.  Whether you lock it in in the first resolution or the second, I think that’s a detail that we’ll discuss.  Staff should probably give it some thought.  I want to make sure you get that.  I’m offering it up.  I’ve been told offer it up.  You should get that and however it’s best, I think your council and staff will make a recommendation to the board before we ever get to adoption of a resolution.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but if you really want to give us the $35,000 it really shouldn’t matter to him that he gives it as part of phase II.  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it doesn’t matter, agreed.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I mean it could be applied to the Red Mill…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated absolutely…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated it’s probably where it’s needed the most.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated quite frankly, I don’t think he really cares where it gets applied.  If you note what I said earlier, it’s for sight distance and/or traffic calming.  If you decide we’re going to cut trees and expand the sight distance but we’re going to do something else, that’s for you to decide.  I can tell you this, and again I say this with the utmost humility, I’ve been authorized to put $35,000, I don’t believe and I’ve been told, it’s not like a negotiation.  That’s it.  He can’t make this thing fly and he’s really trying to keep the Cortway deal alive.  If the Cortway deal falls apart, I may be back here saying “sorry.”  
Mr. Jim Creighton asked so Mr. Steinmetz, I think we’re just struggling with – we’re dealing now with two phases and we don’t want to be stuck where we’ve got one approval and we lose the ability to talk about the second phase.  As long as it’s clear that what’s being offered, and I think it makes sense for your client to offer something in the first phase, that we’ll eventually use in the second phase because it’s $35,000 isn’t going to go terribly far but it may do a lot to help us with engineering to determine what really has to happen for your people to get a school bus into Mill Court, or to do – it may be that there is something our client may agree is essential notwithstanding what the court may have said about a very general condition when there are more specifics and turning radius needs to be expanded or there needs to be more done.  I would imagine your client would be more amenable to making specific improvements if there’s engineering that says “to make this fly, we need this.” 

Mr. David Steinmetz responded let’s make sure we’re all together with Mr. Creighton’s comment.  My client has preliminary subdivision plat approval that your board granted, Chris shift us over to the 13 lots on the western side of this, over there, you granted preliminary plat approval.  There’s legal significance to that as you well know so I’m not sure what you’re now hypothetically envisioning in terms of; we got to go through final plat approval, in my opinion there’s probably not an awful lot of technical detail that goes into the review and approval of those 13 lots if in fact they’re submitted “in substantial accordance with the provisions of your resolution of preliminary approval.”  Let me just finish the thought, the road, the lot count, the lot arrangement, essential easements, all of that should have been addressed by your board, by staff, by your outside consultants, by your neg. dec. that you granted.  So, I’m not sure when you start talking about turning radius and – I think you’re done with that.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I think all that was specifically addressed.  We’re talking about the Red Mill/Mill Court connection, during the public hearings that became a big issue…
Mr. Jim Creighton stated right there, off site but…

Mr. Robert Foley stated off site became a big issue and I believe, if you look at the plan, there is a curb cut on there that would give the uphill buses enough turning, not total radius, where their rear tires will not hit the existing curb.  That would be widened and they would go up Mill Court to make it safer for the kids of the new development and also not to block traffic up on Red Mill Road.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated okay, so here’s my take on this and you all, I think are going to need to confer with Mr. Klarl on this.  I think what Mr. Foley just articulated I would assume is part of what…

Mr. Robert Foley stated I think the court threw it out.  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I would assume it’s what embedded you all, emboldened you all in imposing condition 14 or 15 or maybe 14 and 15 when you asked for sight distance and traffic calming.  I’m sure you thought you had good reason.  You didn’t just do it, presumably right…

Mr. Jim Creighton stated but it was written very general instead of specifically on Red Mill and Mill which had it been a little more specific, maybe that result would have been different. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I believe the litigation papers flushed that out, the court struck as there was no basis in the record to impose on this project and these 13 lots, sight distance and traffic calming at what’s already an existing road with existing conditions and issues, it could not be foist upon this development.  So, I’m here tonight to tell you if you’re planning hypothetically to try to hit this developer with additional improvements at Red Mill and Mill Court on final plat approval for phase II, we probably have a problem.

Mr. John Klarl stated it’s 13 and 14…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated yes, 13 and 14 not 15 thank you.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated into this resolution, just so that we get the money put on the table and whatever comes up in the next phase we can have a discussion.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated let’s get what the real number is.  We’re all talking – you put out 35, staff has to determine…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked isn’t that the number that he gave you?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded it’s a specific number and I have not been authorized, and I don’t believe I will be authorized for anything else to facilitate…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated let’s see what $35,000 buys us.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated what does it get you?  Exactly right, I asked that question of my client and my client said “it buys the town what the town wants to spend it on whether it’s tree removal, widening, some kind of traffic-calming measure at the curb…”

Mr. Robert Foley stated no trees to remove, the stone walls can’t be moved – in that one spot I thought it was all worked out.  I didn’t know it wasn’t written in.  I voted ‘no’ on the project.  I didn’t know it was not written in until the final Resolution.  I wish I could track it down and read our final Resolution on it – I mean our preliminary resolution 
Mr. David Steinmetz stated here’s what I would request Madame Chair, I think obviously staff has to look at the potential utilization of $35,000 and how it would benefit the town.  We would request that you schedule, if you would, a public hearing on the first phase and let’s at least make it into July, working together, cooperatively to see if we can facilitate doing something on this.  This has been a difficult subdivision.  It’s got a 2005 Planning Board date so it’s been kicking around for 9 years, several of which were tied up in litigation.  I’m just stating it as it is…

Mr. Steven Kessler and several which was because of the applicant.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I’m glad I’m back to try to get it over the goal line.  I was off the team during the intermittent years.  I’m back to try and get it back over the goal line and hopefully deliver some benefit in terms of that intersection…

Mr. John Klarl stated it’s a bumpy road…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we’re destined to make it smooth now, all road puns intended.  We would ask that you schedule a public hearing.  We’d like to come back in July and as always we expect to work with staff cooperatively to see if we can try to get it teed up properly for you.

Mr. Robert Foley asked could we ask that the preliminary Resolution of whatever many years ago can be made available to us – I may have a copy in my file but…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we have a copy. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I do think that everybody should have it because we have people who weren’t on the board at that time. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m trying to remember, I’m shocked that that Mill Court/Red Mill cutaway there wasn’t written into the Resolution. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated no, I mean I can read it to you if you want to hear the language Mr. Foley but you should probably read it. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated the worse intersection of Red Mill/Strawberry/Lexington was written off – it can come back and bite us all eventually.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I guess what I’d like to see too between now and the public hearing if we go that route is a revised plan showing what we discussed tonight and…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded [inaudible] plan quickly…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated and also, clearly we talked about 2 phases here, I’m still having trouble flipping back and forth between these drawings as to which is phase I and which is phase II…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated let’s call the Lexington phase and the Mill Court phase. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated if you could clarify that on a piece of paper before the next meeting.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I think the maps are properly labeled but for – regardless Mr. Bianchi, we’ll make sure we clarify that…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated clearly if the are…

Mr. Robert Foley stated and that would also include the suggestion from Steve about…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated yes, we were just told to make that change.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and also the last question but I think it’s been answered that by doing this it’s not setting a precedent in our town or is it?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded setting a precedent?

Mr. Robert Foley stated bifurcating this.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated New York state law section 276 of the town law allows for the filing of plat in sections.  I don’t think you’ve ever had that happen necessarily.  There’s nothing improper, unlawful, you can ask staff.  

Mr. John Klarl stated it’s in the town law Bob.  It’s something we haven’t done but it is there.
Mr. Robert Foley stated we haven’t done…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated so we’re not setting an improper – it’s authorized by state law.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and also on Cortway someone had said they were single-family – I mean there are 30 units within the current Cortway which has been there for many years.  It’s not like single-family like there’s a few houses.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think it’s zoned as a single-family…

Mr. Robert Foley stated oh, it’s zoned – so it’s a pre-existing 30 something, that’s the elephant in the room.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody else who has a comment?

Mr. Jim Creighton responded Madame Chair I move that we schedule a public hearing on phase I or the Lexington phase for our July 1st meeting and also refer the matter to staff to prepare a potential Resolution for us to review at the July meeting.

Seconded.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and just make sure also we’ve got some estimates of what $35,000 buys us.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think that was already included.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you.  See you in July.



*



*



*
NEW BUSINESS 

PB 2-14     a. Application of Mortimer Feinberg and Julie White for approval of a lot line adjustment between two properties located at 31 Brook Lane and 34 Brook Lane as shown on a drawing entitled “Lot Line Adjustment Map” prepared by Joseph R. Link, P.L.S. dated April 23, 2014.

Mr. Joe Flaherty stated I’m an attorney for Durante Bock and Tota in Yorktown Heights and I’m here representing both parties both Mr. Feinberg and Ms. White in this line lot adjustment.  In terms of the threshold issues, just to put it on the record right now, total adjustment of the lot line would result in a 4,187 square foot adjustment, far less than the 20,000 square foot adjustment or 20,000 square foot requirement from the town for 31 Brook Lane which is tax designation lot #16.  The current lot area is 134,743 square feet.  The lot line adjustment would result in a decrease to the current square footage of 130,559 square feet which is 3.1%, again less than the threshold requirement of 20%.  For 34 Brook Lane, the current area is 42,797 square feet and it would be increased to 46,981 square feet which would result in an increase of 9.6%, again within the threshold of the 20% requirement. 
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked the reason for the request?

Mr. Joe Flaherty responded at some point or another Mr. Feinberg had control over both properties.  His wife was Gloria Feinberg.  Gloria passed away in 2004 and the estate had deeded over to Mortimer 34 Brook Lane, lot 17, however the estate maintained control of 31 Brook Lane until February of 2014 where it was then deeded over to the trust of Gloria Feinberg and then sold to Ms. Julie White.  In terms of the reasoning for the adjustment, there is a driveway, overhead utility lines and a patio slate that Mr. Feinberg had been using for the last several decades and they just want to make sure that he maintains use of the property and Ms. White does not incur any liability in case something does happen on that portion of the area.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated basically reflecting the use that it’s currently under, just to reflect that use and legalize it if you will.

Mr. Joe Flaherty responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it appears that this is fairly straightforward.  I don’t know whether staff has anything to add or not.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated there will be a Resolution for the next meeting and one of the conditions of the Resolution will be for you, as an attorney, to work with our attorney to file corrected property deeds but that will be a condition of the approval that you’ll get next month.
Mr. John Klarl stated I’m going to talk to Ed about that a little bit.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we refer back to staff to prepare a Resolution for July.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Joe Flaherty stated thank you.
PB 3-14  b. Application of D&N Contracting Inc., for the property of D & N Housing, LLC for Site Development Plan approval for an office and showroom for a kitchen cabinet, window and door and tile contractor, with no on-site fabrication of items, and for four (4) existing apartments in an existing building located at 2101 Albany Post Road (Route 9A) as shown on a drawing entitled “Amended Site Development Plan for D & N Contracting, Inc.” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. dated May 19, 2014 (see prior PB 40-98)

Mr. Dan Del Monte stated I’m the owner of D&N Contracting.  I thought actually Cronin was going to be here this evening to present this.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re going to ask you then since it’s your property.  Tell us what you’re planning to do.

Mr. Dan Del Monte stated we’re going to open up a showroom, a retail showroom there and sell kitchen cabinets, vanities for bathrooms, tile, granite, we’re not going to produce anything on-site and we’re going to install the materials also. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you’re not going to produce anything on site?

Mr. Dan Del Monte responded yes, we’re not going to fabricate the cabinets.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you’re just going to sell them?

Mr. Dan Del Monte responded correct.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you do realize that this property that you are about to purchase has been on our agenda back and forth for several years, each time we go through this motion and we approve a particular plan and then it sort of falls off the charts and then two or three, four, five years later comes back again proposed to be something else.  We’re really going to go for it this time?

Mr. Dan Del Monte responded I actually own the building so this is my business so this is it.  It’s not going to change into anything else. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked we hope this is it.  Do members of the board have anything that they want to ask or whatever we did get material from Cronin about…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated at this time it will be referred back to staff and we’ll write up what they call a review memo just giving some more information, and facts, get it back to the Planning Board and to Cronin and then you’ll come back at a future meeting, the Planning Board will probably schedule a site inspection to go out and take a look at it and then there’ll be a public hearing.  One thing we’re going to ask Cronin is, and I don’t disagree, it’s always reflected that there are 4 apartments in there but Cronin is drawing seems to say I can only find 3 apartments so that’s the type of question we’ll ask, it’ll get straightened out.

Mr. Dan Del Monte responded absolutely.

Mr. Robert Foley asked do you anticipate – because you weren’t involved in the other projects, right…
Mr. Dan Del Monte responded no, I had nothing to do with them.

Mr. Robert Foley asked do you anticipate more volume or more density of usage there?

Mr. Dan Del Monte responded no, I don’t know really what was going on in there.  I know there was a bunch of different businesses but I have no knowledge of what was going on there beforehand.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but you’re going to be selling the cabinets from there also?
Mr. Dan Del Monte responded that’s correct.

Mr. Robert Foley asked there would be activity in and out of people, potential buyers?
Mr. Dan Del Monte responded I certainly hope so.

Mr. Robert Foley stated no I’m wondering about – he probably has not had a lot of usage lately because the ATV thing went away and whatever else was there before.

Mr. Dan Del Monte stated like I said, I have no knowledge of what was going on there prior to me owning the building.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated we can check at the site visit.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think what Mr. Foley is getting at is the parking lot in the back which has 12 spaces has never really been used with respect to any retail use that’s been going on at the front.  It’s always been sort of maybe for the tenants or just sitting back there but if you’re going to have a retail operation, customers coming and going, they’re going to have to park back there.  We’ll just take a look and make sure there are actually 12 spaces, make sure it works, you know issues like that. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated it will say ‘entrance’ and ‘exit’ onto 9A.  It’s right across Dutch Street.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re also concerned with every other of the applications we approved about – we were concerned about the front was along there.  We didn’t want a lot of materials or things that should not be in the front of a building, sitting out there in plain view.  We want to make sure that you present your case for a clean front.  You’re not planning on putting stuff out there?

Mr. Dan Del Monte responded no.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked like you want to sell some cabinets and then you want to come back and say “can I put all these cabinets out in front of the store so people see what we have?”

Mr. Dan Del Monte responded no, there wouldn’t be anything out front like that, no.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff for a review memo for the next meeting.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re referring you back and as we said they will draft some questions for you and you can work it out with them and you will be back.

Mr. Dan Del Monte responded very good.  Thank you.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 4-14     c. Application of Mongoose Inc. for Preliminary Plat approval and Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal permits for a 6 lot subdivision (5 building lots and 1 open space parcel) of a 128.8 acre parcel of property located on the south side of Maple Avenue and on the east side of Dickerson Road and Hilltop Drive as shown on an 11 page set of drawings entitled “Subdivision of Abee Rose Situated in the Town of Cortlandt, Westchester County, NY” prepared by Badey & Watson Surveying and Engineering PC, dated May 16, 2014.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it doesn’t appear that anyone is here on behalf of the applicant.  There’s no one here to present their case.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated and this is not a public hearing at this point.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is unusual.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated this is easier to read than the plan.  This doesn’t necessarily, accurately, exactly reflect the subdivision plat.  I think some of the lines up here with these lots are a little bit different, but generally speaking, it is four lots proposed and this is not my case, I shouldn’t even be speaking on behalf of the applicant because the applicant should be here but it’s four lots proposed off of the top of Hilltop and one lot proposed off of Maple through an existing easement.  The remainder of this land is to be dedicated to the town of Cortlandt for open space.  It’s a…


Ms. Taylor asked where would they enter? 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated they would enter all the way at the top of Dickerson at Hilltop.  This is the very top of Dickerson, all the way up.

Mr. Robert Foley stated all four of the lots. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated four of them here.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked why don’t you just run down Dickerson again?
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Dickerson is all the way down, all the way down here would where Dickerson intersects with Furnace Dock.  This is Maple here, so the Maple/Furnace Dock intersection’s over here. 

Ms. Taylor asked so where is the entrance to Hilltop?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded right here.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked I thought we do not address any applications where the applicant has not paid taxes?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that would be for your council.

Mr. John Klarl stated there was an agreement signed in the Fall of 2013 between two parties: the town of Cortlandt and the three corporate entities that owned the property here.  There was an arrangement concerning the outstanding taxes.  Instead of me paraphrasing the agreement – there’s a two and a half page agreement between the town of Cortlandt and – what happened is someone asked a question about processing the application with outstanding taxes.  There’s an agreement that was signed in the Fall of 2013 and that agreement was between the town of Cortlandt and the three corporate entities that own the property: Mongoose Inc., Commercial Real Estate Assessment Management Inc., and JPG Cortlandt Inc.  Those three corporate entities own the property.  In this agreement, which I have in my hands, it’s two and a half pages, there was some discussion of the fact that the applicant, the three corporations, is in default of their tax obligations and in connection with that there was a Tax Certiorari matter brought on in the supreme court of Westchester County where they sought to reduce their taxes but that’s arrived at and discussed in the agreement and it talks about that the town and owner agree that the owner should share of the back taxes of $100,000 will be due and owed upon the signing of the subdivision map.  There was an application here, years ago, then there was a Supreme Court case, then there was an appellate division case and we went through that process and there was no settlement.  We stuck to our position and we were upheld, and then there was a Tax Certiorari case.  Also, there was the in rem proceeding so based upon that proceeding with the town, the town took that as an opportunity to discuss the future development of the property and the town struck an agreement with the three corporate entities that provides for 100 acres to be open space and 29 acres to be divided into five residential lots.  That’s the subject of a two and a half page agreement from the Fall of 2013.  Obviously, most people here probably have a copy of that agreement so they can read exactly the essence of the agreement that was struck after the Tax Certiorari case and the in rem case have been handled.  But, they owe us some taxes and they’re going to have to pay taxes and I defer to read the entire agreement yourself, but the essential point of the development here is securing 25 lots versus 41 lots which was requested years ago and with those five lots you would involve 29 acres and have a 100 acres of open space.  The town is particularly happy and delighted to get the 100 acres of open space which could never be developed again.  That’s the answer to the Tax Certiorari case and the development of the property under the Fall 2013 agreement.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked so we only get the back taxes if we approve the subdivision?

Mr. John Klarl responded there’s a discussion here about the outstanding in rem and it talks about what happens if there is a development and there’s no development, well subdivision being obtained but everything is triggered by the signing of the subdivision plat.  For example, paragraph 7 says: “the town and owner agree that the owner share back taxes of $100,000 which will be due and owed upon the signing of the division plat.”  You don’t have to build a house or something like that, just getting a map filed triggers that payment. 

Mr. John Klarl stated they should but the taxes are a state court proceeding and that state court proceeding there was some discussion between town and between applicant as to the future development of the property and this is an agreement that has been arrived at and signed between the town and the three corporate entities.  So, yes you have to pay your taxes but occasionally there’s a case that comes along that it’s right for discussion and I think the Town Board felt that way.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let me just say this; this board was not a party to this agreement.  I don’t feel as though we are the proper people to come to for questions that you might have.  Dr. Becker is here, he’s a council person in case you didn’t know it and he’s on the Town Board so he might have more information for you regarding how this all came together.  Would you want to speak right now?

Dr. Becker stated thank you Madame Chairwoman.  I don’t want to turn my back on the crowd so if you don’t mind.  I’ll give you a five minute summary of how this came to be because this property is near and dear to my heart.  It’s what got me involved in town politics and I’ve only been working on it for 20 years and that’s a minimum.  When this project was first proposed it was, I believe, in the 60 or 70 home range.  It’s on 120 acres of a very pristine area, Dickerson.  That’s one of the tallest peaks in Westchester, has 2 lakes, twin lakes and it also has state-regulated wetlands.  I became involved as an environmentalist and I’m here tonight as a private citizen and the founder of the Dickerson Mountain Preservation Association to protect this land.  I’m certainly also here in my role as a councilman and also just to provide some information.  To make a long story short, as this project, many years ago in the late ‘80s and into ‘90s wound its way through the Planning Board process, it went from the 60 to eventually 47, down to 30 and then it was in the high 20s of homes.  The reason it was each time it went through the process, the number of homes was knocked down was because it was so environmentally sensitive that they couldn’t even get septics in there so the only way to get in would be to build a sewage treatment plant.  Also, to cut a road all along Dickerson Mountain, which ended in a dead-end, a cul-de-sac ¾ of a mile long.  In the end this Planning Board opined and turned the project down and that was I believe, John you can correct me, I think it was the first time where a project was completely rejected.  They didn’t knock it down to 10 or 8 it was rejected.
Mr. John Klarl stated it was the first time we went to a finding statement and SEQRA and denied.

Dr. Becker stated that was a big success then it went to an article 78 where the applicant filed sued that his rights as a developer were not honored and the town prevailed.  In that decision it was found that the applicant had indeed had his rights represented and that the town Planning Board acted completely within its purview and did its job correctly but that does not mean we can sterilize this man’s property.  No judge would allow you to say that on 120 acres, you can’t get a few homes in there.  So, for the last 8 or 10 years we’ve been trying to negotiate how to settle this to the best resolution possible to the community.  During this time, the three owners have fallen in arrears of their taxes to the tune of about $400,000.  A deal has been struck tentatively, nothing is permanent, nothing is finalized and certainly this will again come up to the Planning Board who will function independently of the town board and when I came to the work session on Thursday, I reaffirmed that, but this is an issue that the Planning Board should handle themselves.  But, the tentative deal, the proposal is that the town would acquire over 100 acres, I believe it’s 106 acres of completely open space that happens to be contiguous with several hundred acres from the farm at the end of Maple Avenue and also with Valeria on the other side, creating a swath of about 500 acres.  That land would be acquired in lieu of the owed taxes.  The applicant would retain approximately 20 acres of which he has proposed 5 homes and he would still owe the tax of about $100,000 on that property.  Now, it is totally up to the Planning Board and they just have to look at those remaining 20 acres whether any houses are reasonable, 5 houses, whether the site plan is appropriate or not, that’s completely up to their purview.  I just wanted to give people the historical information because it’s very important to understand we can’t go to this guy and say “you can’t develop anything.”  You can’t sterilize property.  On the other hand, how many houses are built on those 20 remaining acres, are up to the Planning Board.  From the Town Board’s standpoint, we would be very happy to get 100 acres of land for $400,000 in owed taxes.  I mean anyone who can buy 100 acres for $400,000 that’s a very good deal for the town.  That’s the basis of it and I’ll leave it up to everyone from there.  Thank you so much Madame Chairwoman.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you very much for your input.

Mr. John Klarl stated just two further things: Dr. Becker is absolutely right we gave a denial after a finding statement.  That was the first time we did that in the history of the town of Cortlandt.  We went to a finding statement SEQRA and gave a denial and that denial was based largely in four reasons: that there was excessive slopes, there was excessive wetlands, there was excessive driveway lengths, and the sewage treatment plant, so for those reasons that we argued and pressed upon we came out favorably in the supreme court case and appellate division case but also just because you prevail in that kind of a case doesn’t mean that someone can’t make an application the following Monday after the case and say “okay they wouldn’t give me ‘x’ but maybe they’ll give me ‘x’ minus ten lots.”  They have the right to make an application at any point and making an application requesting 5 houses on 129 acres, that’s a tough one to try and deny.  The Town Board took the opportunity to say we’re all together now in Tax Certiorari proceeding and let’s talk about it and when they talked they put together an agreement, signed it which says: we’re going to have 100 acres as open space and we’re going to have 20 some acres for the 5 houses, and also there’s a portion of the property that’s going to be used for a future water tank which is something the town desires also.
Mr. John Klarl asked Chris, can you circle the water tank?

Mr. Ed Vergano stated the town right now is currently short on water storage capacity and so we need additional water tanks.  Right now that site is not being considered though.  That’s just a possible future location.  We’re looking at another site at the other end of town where there are existing water tanks.  In fact, we’re looking into a place with an existing water tank, with a much larger tank so that would satisfy, at least a good portion of our storage requirements.  I wouldn’t focus too much on that issue at this point.

Mr. Robert Foley asked would there be an advantage because of the elevation?

Someone from the audience stated you’ve got Valeria.  You’ve got the water tank.  You have people on the left side now. 
Someone from the audience stated if somebody drove down [inaudible] they’re very narrow.  They’re very dangerous and they’re in disrepair.  It is a miracle there hasn’t been a major accident and now you’re going to have more cars into the equation of the road that is so narrow.
Mr. Ed Vergano stated all that will be considered during the subdivision process as Dr. Becker had mentioned, councilman Becker had mentioned.  This has to follow a subdivision review process with this board.  There will public hearings, again none of this will be short-circuited and as Dr. Becker mentioned this is not a final deal.  All these issues will come up during the course of the application.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated the point is this is the start of the process.  We received this application for the first time tonight.  This is the first time the board’s seeing it and now this whole review process will begin and that will include staff reviewing this and making comments, public hearings, perhaps environmental impact statements, site inspection, so there’s quite a long process ahead, a many month process ahead. 

Mr. John Klarl stated at our Thursday work session Dr. Becker explained that the Town Board wanted the Planning Board to go through its usual due diligence and not be handcuffed in any way because there was a town agreement.  Dr. Becker underscored that Thursday night.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and also Dr. Becker’s our liaison from the Town Board to the Planning Board thus his presentation.  Most of us on this board, I know Loretta and Steve and myself and probably Tom have been there for the site visits from the original application so we know the lay of the land and all of the negatives on it both from the Maple Avenue side and certainly going up Dickerson Mountain Road to the top.  This was a number of years ago.  I had a question on the water tower; the reason that was a possibility was because of elevation and gravity-fed?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that’s right, there are intermediate areas in the town where you get the needed elevation for the water tank.  This is one of them…

Mr. Robert Foley asked but it would have a low impact?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded again, it’s not even in the cards right now.  We’re not even thinking about a water tank at that location.  We found another location for the water tank that will be built so it’s not even a discussion at this point.  I didn’t know it was shown on the plan. 
Mr. Jim Creighton stated no, but it’s there because those two parcels, all the open space is listed as park land and if later on the town wanted to put in a water tank, you can’t put it in on park land so you have to reserve it even if you’re not going to do it for 100 years, doing that is good planning so it’s not likely to happen but at least it offers the town the opportunity to do it if it needs to.

Mr. Robert Foley stated you may have well water where you are now.  I assume you live up there.  I don’t know.  This would be an advantage to the town residents too, correct?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded they currently have town water. 

Someone from the audience stated getting back to the house.  If I’m understanding this correctly you guys are [Inaudible] you can’t stop him from building a house you can only allow him to build one house?
Mr. John Klarl stated we can’t stop them from making an application.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re having a lot of conversation from the floor and as Steve has already pointed out, this is sort of the beginning of the process.  We don’t normally encourage this level of interaction at this particular point.  I appreciate your concern.  I believe I understand all these concerns that you have but I also think that we all have to be realistic about this.  You’ve already been told by Dr. Becker and by our own counsel here that you can’t prevent this person, this applicant from doing something with this land.  Right now you’ve got 5 houses, before there was a proposed 40 or more houses.  If we can knock it down from 5 to 4 we will do that because it is necessary to do so.  We don’t just arbitrarily do it, but you need to really be very realistic that something is going to be built here.  It is our job to make sure that whatever is built fits and is suitable to the specific land on which it’s going to be built…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I don’t think that’s true.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated excuse me, this is if in fact this is buildable land where he’s putting these houses and we don’t have any way of saying “this is unsafe or uncertain or there’s a problem going to develop up there…”  We have to move forward with this application as we do with every other.  We don’t have to like it but if he has a right to build on his property and we can’t be certain or we’re not certain that there’s going to be any problems then we can’t prevent it.  We need to be very clear, we have engineers who go out and who look at things.  We have our consultants so it goes through the normal process, the SEQRA process but I think what you really need to understand is that we can’t deny this person just outright because the land is sensitive.  If he found some spots on this land that he can put some houses the court’s going to allow him to put them there.  I’m sorry, yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated if this is going to continue, which I don’t think it should but you need to come to the microphone because it’s not getting tape recorded.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I just want to emphasize with Steve that this is the start of a process.  This is the first time we’re seeing this application.  We have a lot of considerations to discuss, staff has a lot of work to do on it.  Whether we approve, one, four or zero lots is right now premature to assume.  I just want to emphasize that there’s going to be a lot more going on with this case that you should all be involved with and will be involved with and will have the opportunity to be involved with but tonight’s the first night.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated and before you start, one thing and you mentioned that something will be built and what I think Madame Chair meant to say is they have an absolute right to bring a proposal to the town and go through the process and it may be that one, four, whatever number of lots are approved and then they’ve got an approved subdivision.  That doesn’t mean that somebody can’t buy it and save it, that’s something else but as far as this board is concerned, we need to look at it and say “is this a use of the property that’s reasonable?”  We need to go through the process and they’re entitled to do it.  They’ve sought to do it.  I’m not sure why they’re not here tonight but them not being here tonight would mean usually we just stop and we’re done. 

Someone from the audience asked why isn’t that going to happen?

Mr. Jim Creighton stated for the evening.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated what he means by saying ‘stop’ it means that will have to go away and you’ll have to come back next month.  What we’re actually trying to do is make this somewhat of a productive discussion.  I’m not sure whether this goes on ‘new business’ again next month then we do this all over again.  I don’t know.  We’ll figure that out after the comments, but it is very odd – we’re not defending this application.  It’s not our application.  They should be here defending.

Mr. Robert Foley stated we’re not advocating anything yet but there is material just to get you started, and it may be too soon.  There’s plenty of material that we have that would be available if you went in or had a representative to the planning office to look at it, maybe you already have what we’re working with now but there’ll be tons more.  Also, on the proposal, again it’s a proposal, the open space to be dedicated to the town would be passive park land which to me, as an individual, is an upside for you people where you live. 

Someone from the audience stated well the upside for us and I believe my neighbors would agree with me is to have all of the land be free land undisturbed by any more development, however…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated in the end, there may be nothing done or there may be 5 houses, or 3…

Someone from the audience stated 5 houses is a lot of construction and a lot of noise and a lot of pollution.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated all we’re saying is that we can’t presuppose any of it.  We may end up with none and you’ll be very involved in the process, you’ll be involved in all the public hearings and we definitely take into account everything you guys say.

Someone from the audience asked may I ask some questions please?  May I ask some questions?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded at this point, I think somebody has come in – is this the representative for the applicant.  The representative has come in so we want to give him an opportunity to come up and…

Mr. Glenn Watson stated hi, Glenn Watson.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ve already introduced your project because you weren’t here.  People had certain questions, staff tried to sort of explain what was going on.  Our counsel tried to deal with the agreement, etc.  We probably should hear a few comments from you as to what you’re doing and we’ll probably end it at that point because we then have to refer this back…

Mr. Glenn Watson stated I just have to preface this by saying that I was told to be here at 8:30 and actually Mr. Wells was going to make a presentation or answer any questions but I know pretty much about the project.  As you know, it’s a difficult piece of property.  We’ve worked all winter on it and we still have work to do.  It’s a 5 residential lots and the rest of the land is slighted to be given to the town.  We’re planning to extend one road a short distance into the property from one end for 4 lots and take advantage of a reserved area on an older subdivision map to reach the 5th lot.  There are extensive wetlands.  Most recent, which I will explain, most recently has been a cause – we’re going to have to do a little more work on it because the wetlands, as they appeared on the previous applications turned out to be incorrect and then there was a delay in getting the wetlands flagged so we only got them.  As a result, a couple of areas that we’re going to have to move the planned septic areas a little bit but sort of par for the course.  It happens.  

Mr. Ed Vergano asked will that change the configuration of the lots as shown?

Mr. Glenn Watson responded it will change the configuration of the lots a little bit.  It’s obviously going to depend on the test results because we’re going to have to test different areas.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked one of the things that I think is of concern to both the people who are here tonight and the board is we want a sense of how sensitive this particular area is where you’re putting these lots.  Are they extra sensitive – they can’t be extra sensitive but are they relatively free of problems?
Mr. Glenn Watson responded it’s not a question of – I’m not an environmentalist and I’m not terribly conversant in that but we did try to – we did go through the exercise of doing a lot count.  We’ve tried to avoid the steep slopes to the greatest extent possible.  We’ve obviously have tried to avoid the wetlands but we’re going to have to revise our thinking on that as I just explained to you.  We did try to work our way around the steep slopes.  We’re, I think fairly well into the property and so those usual major concerns of wetlands and steep slopes are certainly addressed. 
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one of the issues – you received in your packet is the steep slope map, the wetlands as Glen said, the delineation is still being finalized by our consultant.  You will get a full wetland report.  One of the items raised in the review memo will be a necessity of the lot count map showing all of the different colors, showing where there are areas of slope 15 to 20, 25 above, where is wetland, where there is wetland buffer then the house gets placed so we can see all of those details will be worked out in the review memo as we go through the process.  

Mr. Peter Daly asked Chris, how about biodiversity?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded well that would be for this board to decide.  There was biodiversity studies done on the 128 acres a long time ago so it would be up to you to decide if this 20-acre piece needed another study.  We’ll look at that and that’ll be mentioned in the review memo.

Mr. Peter Daly asked trees as well, as far as the proposed lots?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded all of the trees have been located.

Mr. Glenn Watson stated they’ve all been tagged and located and the inventory’s been delivered to your consultant.

Mr. Peter Daly stated good.

Someone from the audience asked how many trees you’re going to have cut down?
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I don’t know the number off my head but there is a number and it’s a lot.

Someone from the audience  stated basically is what’s tagged being cut down?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no.

Mr. Glenn Watson stated around 3,600 trees on the site – there are about 3,600 trees in the vicinity of the development and no they won’t all be cut down.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have to stop now at this point, because as you’ve just been told we’re just really beginning the process.  This is the first time we’ve heard about – it wasn’t tonight but Thursday night during our work session so there’s a lot still to be dealt with in the application process.  There’s a lot of things that you can find out from our staff by simply picking up the phone or coming by as already indicated.  This is not a one shot deal.  We’re going to be going through the process and sometimes that’s fairly quick but on other cases or other applications it’s a fairly long process.  We will do what we need to do as a Planning Board to help ensure that the problems and concerns you have are addressed and we’ll take it as it comes.  We’re going to send this back.  We’re going to refer…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I just want to say that, again, as you mentioned, this is a lengthy process and plenty of opportunity for public comment.  With that said, feel free to call me, I’m the town engineer Ed Vergano 734-1060 and we can set up an appointment to come into my office.  I’ll go over the plans with anybody.  I’ll spend as much time on the phone with you.  I’ll answer…
Someone from the audience asked can you repeat all that please?
Mr. Ed Vergano stated 734-1060, Ed V-E-R-G-A-N-O…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated may I make a suggestion on that, you all have come from this area and maybe it would be really be easier on staff, because Ed is very busy too, to kind of get together, put all the questions together that you have and then one or two people sort of contact him because he’ll be answering questions all day to each of you and in a way each person wants to have a question and makes a call and that becomes difficult for him to do his business during the course of the day.  It might be helpful to you all to see all the questions that are being asked, add to them if you have a particular kind of question, designate a person or two to be the people who will run interference so to speak, call Ed and get the answers and get back and follow up that kind of thing.  It would probably be much more efficient to do it that way.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated along those lines, orange signs went up simply announcing this meeting tonight.  Those orange signs, we don’t really have a good system.  They stay up as long as they stay up.  They get knocked over, they go away.  There is no obligation that those signs have to stay up.  We consider the community notified of the project.  You have to keep in touch with my office.  I’m Chris.  I’m the planner, Chris Kehoe: K-E-H-O-E 734-1080 is my number.  More or less this case will be on every agenda from now going forward but you should always check with my office.  We post the agendas.  At some point in the future another orange sign will go up, it looks just like the one we put out there now announcing the public hearing and everybody who’s immediately contiguous to the property or across the street will receive written notification of the public hearing.  But, I just want to make sure that we’re not letting everybody know every month.  The sign will probably come down, that happens and then a new sign will go up.  Keep in touch with my office about the application…

Mr. John Klarl stated check the agenda on the website.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and the meetings are the first Tuesday of every month, that’s when we meet.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Mr. Watson and Mr. Wells are finished?  Should I make a motion?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes, they’re done.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion Madame Chairwoman that we refer this back for a review memo.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn.


*



*



*
Next Meeting: TUESDAY, JULY 1, 2014
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